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in accordance with Executive Order
13132, the BLM has determined that
these proposed supplementary rules do
not have sufficient Federalism
implications to warrant preparation of a
Federalism Assessment.

Executive Order 12988, Civil Justice
Reform

Under Executive Order 12988, the
BLM Idaho State Office has determined
that these proposed supplementary
rules would not unduly burden the
judicial system and that they meet the
requirements of sections 3(a) and 3(b)(2)
of the Order.

Executive Order 13175, Consultation
and Coordination With Indian Tribal
Governments

In accordance with Executive Order
13175, we have found that these
proposed supplementary rules do not
include policies that have tribal
implications. Since the proposed rules
do not change BLM policy as it pertains
to Tribes and do not involve Indian
reservation lands, resources, or property
rights, the BLM has determined that the
government-to-government
relationships should remain unaffected.

Executive Order 13211, Actions
Concerning Regulations That
Significantly Affect Energy Supply,
Distribution, or Use

These proposed supplementary rules
do not comprise a significant energy
action. The rules will not have an
adverse effect on energy supplies,
production, or consumption. They only
address the use of certified noxious-
weed-free forage and straw on public
lands and have no connection with
energy policy.

Paperwork Reduction Act

These proposed supplementary rules
do not contain information collection
requirements that the Office of
Management and Budget must approve
under the Paperwork Reduction Act of
1995, 44 U.S.C. 3501 et seq.

Author

The principal author of these
proposed supplementary rules is Roger
Rosentreter, Botanist, Idaho BLM State
Office.

Supplementary Rules To Require the
Use of Certified Noxious-Weed-Free
Forage and Straw on Bureau of Land
Management-Administered Public
Lands in Idaho

(1) To prevent the spread of noxious
weeds on BLM-administered public
lands in Idaho, it is a prohibited act to
feed or store forage or straw on BLM-

administered land that has not been
certified as noxious-weed-free.
Restoration, rehabilitation, and
stabilization projects also are required to
use weed-free straw bales and mulch for
project work.

Once this rule becomes effective,
there will be a 60-day grace period for
enforcement of this rule.

(2) The certification program
currently includes 57 weeds that have
been designated as noxious in Idaho
under the Idaho State noxious-weed-free
standards, or certified to be free from
those weeds designated in the North
American Weed Free Forage Program
list, which was developed by the North
American Weed Management
Association (NAWMA). This NAWMA
list currently includes the 57 weeds
designated noxious in Idaho and also
includes an additional 15 invasive
weeds. BLM Idaho allows forage that
meets Idaho, NAWMA, or other states’
standards for certification as noxious-
weed-free. Although weeds may be
added or removed from these various
lists, the BLM recognizes this forage as
certified noxious-weed-free as long as it
has been marked indicating that it meets
the standards for certification.

(3) Certified noxious-weed-free hay
must be identified by one of the
following:

(a) State certification tag attached to
the bale string;

(b) At least one strand of purple and
yellow (intertwined) bale twine
encircling the bale;

(c) Blue and orange (intertwined) bale
twine encircling the bale; or

(d) Other colored twine encircling the
bale that is used to designate certified
forage.

(4) Certified noxious-weed-free
compressed forage bales are identified
by yellow binding (strapping) material
with the statement “ISDA NWFFS” and
the manufacturer’s name printed in
purple.

(5) Certified noxious-weed-free forage
in bags is identified by a stamp, sticker,
or printing on the bag identifying it as
certified forage.

(6) The following persons/activities
are exempt from this order:

(a) Any person with a permit or letter
signed by a BLM authorized officer
specifically authorizing the prohibited
act, such as an authorized livestock
permittee during an emergency situation
in which livestock must be fed
uncertified forage or hay for a short
period of time until they can be moved
to safety; and

(b) Any person transporting hay or
forage across public lands from private
property to private property.

(7) Any person who knowingly or
willfully violates the provisions of these
supplementary rules may be required to
appear before a designated United States
Magistrate and may be subject to a fine
of not more than $1,000 or
imprisonment of not more than 12
months, or both, as defined in 43 U.S.C.
1733(a). Such violations may also be
subject to enhanced fines provided for
by 18 U.S.C. 3571.

Peter J. Ditton,

Acting Idaho State Director, Bureau of Land
Management.

[FR Doc. 2010-23462 Filed 9-20-10; 8:45 am]
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Notice of Temporary Closure of Public
Lands in Fergus County, MT

AGENCY: Bureau of Land Management,
Interior.

ACTION: Notice of temporary area
closure.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a
temporary closure of public land to
motorized vehicles, hiking, or other
recreational uses is in effect on 660
acres of public lands administered by
the Lewistown Field Office, Bureau of
Land Management, within the Limekiln
Canyon/Ruby Gulch area. This notice
also applies to a BLM-held easement
over 80 acres of private land.

DATES: This temporary closure will be in
effect for 2 years from the date this
notice is published in the Federal
Register.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Willy Frank, Field Manager, 920 NE
Main St., Lewistown, Montana 59457;
(406) 538—1918. Persons who use a
telecommunications device for the deaf
(TDD) may call the Federal Information
Relay Service (FIRS) at 1-800-877—-8339
to contact the above individual during
normal business hours. The FIRS is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week,
to leave a message or question with the
above individual. You will receive a
reply during normal business hours.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This
temporary closure is in response to a
severe wind event that heavily damaged
most of the timber within this 660-acre
block of BLM-managed lands in the
Judith Mountains Recreation
Management Area in Fergus County,
Montana. The downed timber is
blocking a portion of a popular loop
hiking trail and, if left in place, will also



57500

Federal Register/Vol. 75, No. 182/Tuesday, September 21, 2010/ Notices

contribute to the potential for
catastrophic wildland fire. The BLM has
contracted for road construction into the
damaged area, salvage logging, and
reclamation of the road once salvage
logging is completed and administrative
access is no longer needed. In the
interim, the mixture of heavy
equipment, a narrow temporary road,
logging operations, steep slopes,
tumbling rocks, and other debris in the
construction/logging area make the area
unsafe for public use, including
motorized vehicles, hiking, or other
recreational uses.

Approximately two-thirds of the loop
hiking trail within the Limekiln
Canyon/Ruby Gulch area will remain
available for public use.

The area closure (including about
one-third of the hiking trail) is necessary
to protect the public health and safety
and to enhance efficient contract
administration.

The legal description of the affected
lands is:

Montana Principal Meridian
T.16 N.,R. 19 E,,
Sec. 17, SVz;
Sec. 20, NV2 NEV4; SEVa NEVa; NV2 NEVa
SEVa; NV2 NWl;
Sec. 21, NWVa SWa; W2 NWa,
The area described aggregates 660 acres.

The BLM will post closure signs at
main entry points to the roads and trails
in the immediate vicinity of the logging
operations. The BLM will also post the
closure order in the Lewistown Field
Office and will keep the public
informed as this project progresses via
local and regional press releases and
posting those releases on the BLM
Montana Web site (http://www.blm.gov/
mt/st/en.html). Maps of the affected
areas and other documents associated
with this closure are available on site
and at the BLM Lewistown Field Office
at 920 NE Main, Lewistown, Montana
59457.

Further information may be found in
the Limekiln Canyon/Ruby Gulch
Temporary Closure Environmental
Assessment (EA #MT-060-2010-0029)
and in the case file for EA #MT060—
2009-001, the Limekiln/Ruby Timber
Salvage and Thinning Project.

Under the authority of Section 303(a)
of the Federal Land Policy and
Management Act of 1976 (43 U.S.C.
1733(a)), 43 CFR 8360.0-7, and 43 CFR
8364.1, the BLM will enforce the
following rule within the Upper
Limekiln Canyon in Fergus County,
Montana:

You must not use motorized vehicles,
hike, or otherwise enter the public land
within the closed area.

The following persons are exempt
from this order: Federal, State, and local
officers and employees in the
performance of their official duties;
members of organized rescue or fire-
fighting forces in the performance of
their official duties; and persons with
written authorization from the Bureau of
Land Management.

Penalties: Any person who violates
the above restriction may be tried before
a United States Magistrate and fined no
more than $1,000, imprisoned for no
more than 12 months, or both. Such
violations may also be subject to the
enhanced fines provided for by 18
U.S.C. 3571.

Gary L. “Stan” Benes,
Lewistown District Manager.

Authority: 43 CFR 8364.1.
[FR Doc. 2010-23467 Filed 9-20-10; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4310-DN-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

Notice of Receipt of Complaint;
Solicitation of Comments Relating to
the Public Interest

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade
Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that
the U.S. International Trade
Commission has received a complaint
entitled In Re Certain Digital Televisions
and Components Thereof, DN 2755 ; the
Commission is soliciting comments on
any public interest issues raised by the
complaint.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Marilyn R. Abbott, Secretary to the
Commission, U.S. International Trade
Commission, 500 E Street, SW.,
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202)
205-2000. The public version of the
complaint can be accessed on the
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS)
at http://edis.usitc.gov, and will be
available for inspection during official
business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.)
in the Office of the Secretary, U.S.
International Trade Commission, 500 E
Street, SW., Washington, DC 20436,
telephone (202) 205-2000.

General information concerning the
Commission may also be obtained by
accessing its Internet server (http://
www.usitc.gov). The public record for
this investigation may be viewed on the
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS)
at http://edis.usitc.gov. Hearing-
impaired persons are advised that
information on this matter can be
obtained by contacting the

Commission’s TDD terminal on (202)
205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The
Commission has received a complaint
filed on behalf of LG Electronics, Inc. on
September 15, 2010. The complaint
alleges violations of section 337 of the
Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C. 1337) in
the importation into the United States,
the sale for importation, and the sale
within the United States after
importation of certain digital televisions
and components thereof. The complaint
names as respondents Vizio, Inc. of
Irvine, CA; AmMTRAN Technology Co.,
Ltd. of Chungho City, Taipei 23553,
Taiwan; and AmTRAN Logistics, Inc. of
Irvine, CA.

The complainant, proposed
respondents, other interested parties,
and members of the public are invited
to file comments, not to exceed five
pages in length, on any public interest
issues raised by the complaint.
Comments should address whether
issuance of an exclusion order and/or a
cease and desist order in this
investigation would negatively affect the
public health and welfare in the United
States, competitive conditions in the
United States economy, the production
of like or directly competitive articles in
the United States, or United States
consumers.

In particular, the Commission is
interested in comments that:

(i) Explain how the articles
potentially subject to the orders are used
in the United States;

(ii) Identify any public health, safety,
or welfare concerns in the United States
relating to the potential orders;

(iii) Indicate the extent to which like
or directly competitive articles are
produced in the United States or are
otherwise available in the United States,
with respect to the articles potentially
subject to the orders; and

(iv) Indicate whether Complainant,
Complainant’s licensees, and/or third
party suppliers have the capacity to
replace the volume of articles
potentially subject to an exclusion order
and a cease and desist order within a
commercially reasonable time.

Written submissions must be filed no
later than by close of business, five
business days after the date of
publication of this notice in the Federal
Register. There will be further
opportunities for comment on the
public interest after the issuance of any
final initial determination in this
investigation.

Persons filing written submissions
must file the original document and 12
true copies thereof on or before the
deadlines stated above with the Office
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